
 
REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

  TUESDAY, MAY 5, 2015 
7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO   45356 

 
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL CALL 
 

PROCLAMATION:   NATIONAL POLICE WEEK 
 
 PROCLAMATION:   MUNICIPAL CLERKS WEEK 
 
 EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

1. Move to Executive Session to consider matters regarded as confidential by federal law or rules or 
state statutes 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

  
 
             REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 
    CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Approval of the minutes from the April 21, 2015 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting 

 
 OLD BUSINESS 
 

2. ORD. NO.5-15 (2nd Reading)-Amended 
An Ordinance amending Section 94.23 (I) relating to Curfew and Prohibitions on use of Parks  
and Gazebo 

 
3. ORD. NO. 6-15 (2nd Reading) 

An Ordinance amending Sections 154.027 of the City of Piqua Code of Ordinances to allow a place 
of worship in a I-1 Light Industrial Zoning District 

 
 NEW BUSINESS 
 

4. RES. NO. R-78-15  
An Emergency Resolution requesting authorization to enter into contract with CDM-Smith for 
amendment No:2 to the Engineering Services for a Wastewater Treatment Plant Detailed Design 

 
5. RES. NO. R-79-15 

A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into the Economic Development Revolving Loan 
Fund (RLF) Agreement with the State of Ohio Development Services Agency for the period January 
1, 2015 through December 31, 2017 
 

6. RES. NO. R-80-15 
An Emergency Resolution granting a temporary easement to Northrop Grumman Systems 
Corporation 
 
 



 2

 
 

7. RES. NO. R-81-15 
An Emergency Resolution acquiring JCRANE Inc. to provide crane and transportation services for 
the Power System 

 
8. RES. NO. R-82-15 

An Emergency Resolution obtaining OTC Services Inc. to provide Professional Field Services, Unit 
Inspection, and refurbishment for the Main Power Transformer for Substation #3 
 

9. RES. NO. R-83-15 
A Resolution authorizing the execution of a loan agreement with Harvest Pantry, LLC, in the 
amount of $30,000 
 

 PUBLIC COMMENT  
(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions  
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 
 
 ADJOURNMENT   



 1

     MINUTES 
PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 

Tuesday, April 21, 2015 7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Terry, Vogt, Wilson, and Martin.  Absent: None. 
 
Mayor Fess read an Official Statement on the Rules of Conduct for the Piqua City Commission 
Meetings. 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

       PROCLAMATION – NATIONAL BIKE MONTH 
 
       Mayor Fess read the proclamation and presented it to Mike Gutmann and Jim Hemmert. 
     
       Mike Gutmann thanked the City of Piqua and the Commissioners for the proclamation. 
 
       Mr. Gutmann is Co-Chair of the Miami Valley Cycling Summit that is being held in Piqua at the  
       Fort Piqua Plaza on May 29 and he provided a brief overview of the events.   
 
       Tom Hudson, Downing Street, came forward stating he wanted to thank Mike & Elizabeth  
       Gutmann for co-chairing the Miami Valley Cycling Summit.  Mr. Hudson also provided a brief  
       overview of the River Summit Conference he attended this year, and encouraged citizens 
       to attend the Bicycle Summit and the Cyclovia. 
 
        Jim Hemmert, Boone Street, stated the Miami Valley Centre Mall is promoting May as bike  
        month with window displays, with 5 windows painted by Michel Glass.  Mr. Hemmert  
        also reminded citizens that Bike to Work week is also coming up and to begin to make plans to  
        ride their bike to work. 
        
       Mayor Fess thanked all that are involved in the many activities that are taking place in the City of  
       Piqua. 
 
       Consent Agenda 
 
.      Approval of Minutes  
     
       Approval of the minutes from the April 7, 2015 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting. 
 
       RES. NO. R-72-15 
       A Resolution appointing a member to the Civil Service Commission 
 
       RES. NO. R-73-15 
       A Resolution appointing a member to the Miami County Community Action Council Board 
  
       Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, to approve the Consent  
       Agenda.  Voice vote, Aye: Vogt, Martin, Terry, Fess, and Wilson.  Nay: None.  Motion carried  
       unanimously 
 
       NEW  BUSINESS  
      
       ORD. NO. 5-15 (1st Reading) 
       An Ordinance amending Section 94.23 (I) relating to Curfew and Prohibitions on use of Parks and 
       Gazebo 
 
       Bruce Jamison, Chief of Police, provided the Staff Report. 



 2

 Chief Jamison stated this problem was discussed at a City Commission Work Session in February, 
 2015 after multiple complaints had been received regarding unruly behavior of unsupervised juveniles 
 disturbing patron of the Fort Piqua Plaza (Library, Plaza rentals, food service entities). Efforts to  
 curtail       these problems have ranged from discussions with the children that frequent the area on 
 proper behavior and language, to physical arrest of juveniles. Most of the complaints have not come  
 thru the Police Department, but the police have been notified later that citizens fear to be in the area,  
 afraid to get out of their cars because of intimidating tactics, and the use offensive language. 
 
 There has also been damage done to the gazebo with youth observed climbing on the roof, and doing   
  dangerous activities around the gazebo, stated Chief Jamison. 
 
  Ordinance No. 5-15 would expand the existing park curfew and prohibitions and require minors using  
  the park facilities in that immediate area to be supervised.  This allows for the enjoyment of facilities  
  in structured settings where the juvenile’s behavior can be controlled for the enjoyment of everyone 
  in the area, this is also safer for the children.  The language regarding proper supervision already  
  exists in Chapter 139 of the Piqua City Code, to allow exceptions to the curfew for minors engaged in  
  supervised activities outside of the nighttime curfew hours, stated Chief Jamison. 
 
  In conjunction with this Ordinance, non-legislative regulations will be applied to the areas owned by  
  the city that are neither part of the leased space nor the park, most notably the stairs and the ramp  
  near the Library entrance.  The Library and the Police staff will both be able to monitor the area, 
  issue warnings when appropriate, and then the Police can take enforcement action against those 
  that do not comply with the regulations and warnings, stated Chief Jamison. 
      
   PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
    Commissioner asked several questions regarding the ways to enforce the ordinance and how to  
    eliminate the problems. Chief Jamison addressed the questions. Several suggestions were made  
    on how to discourage the juveniles from congregating in the areas. 
 
     Doug Smith, W. High Street, came forward and voiced his opinion on the ordinance, further stating  
     there has been vandalism on the Bike Path and at Lock 9 also.  One of his suggestions was to  
     have the juveniles do embarrassing community service instead of paying fines. 
 
     Tom Hudson, N. Downing Street, came forward and asked if it would be possible to include Lock 9  
      Park in the Ordinance as there has been considerable damage done there also.   
 
     Nick Alexander, S. Roosevelt, came forward and voiced his concern over the ordinance stating he  
     would like to see monitoring by parents or guardian added to the ordinance. 
 
     Tom Beck, Garfield Street, came forward and voiced his opinion on the Ordinance, further stating  
      he disagrees with a government body dictating policy to the youth. The Police need to form a bond  
      with the youth, stated Mr. Beck. 
 
      Mary Francis Rodriguez, N. Downing Street came forward and voiced her support of the  
      Ordinance. 
 
      Ralph Green, Beverly Drive came forward stating several instances of unruly behavior that he had  
      witnessed first-hand. 
 
      Jim Oda, Library Director, came forward stating he wants everyone to have access to the Library 
      and feels there are just few individuals causing problems for the patrons, and does not want that  
      to stop them from coming to the Library.  They should feel safe and secure when coming in and  
      out of the Library stated Mr. Oda. This Ordinance will provided the Police Department with a tool  
      to help eliminate some of the issues they are having with the youth.  This is a simple straight  
      forward Ordinance and the Library Trustees are endorsing the passage of Ordinance 5-15, stated 
      Mr. Oda. 
 



 3

   Commissioner Vogt asked if the Library had the same problem at the Library’s previous location.   
    
   Mr. Oda stated yes. 
 
   Vickie Reed Coronada Ct. came forward and expressed her support of the Ordinance, further stating  
   she has personally witnessed several issues. 
 
    Ordinance No. 5-15 was given a first reading. 
 
    ORD. NO. 6-15 (1st Reading) 
    An Ordinance amending Sections 154.027 of the City of Piqua Code of Ordinance to all a place of  
    worship in a I-1 Light Industrial Zoning District 
 
    Chris Schmiesing, City Planner, provided the Staff Report. 
 
    This item was presented to the Planning Commission in response to a request from the owner of  
     the property located at 8564 County Rd. 25-A in Piqua.  The owner would like to lease the property  
     to a Place of Worship.  Currently a Place of Worship is permitted in all districts except the Industrial  
     zoning designation.  Vacant or commercial building spaces are often well suited to the needs of this  
     use type stated Mr. Schmiesing. 
 
     After review the Planning Commission concluded it would be prudent to include provisions to allow 
     the Place of Worship as a principal permitted use in the I-1 Light Industrial zoning district. 
 
    PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
    Nick Alexander, Roosevelt Avenue, came forward and voiced his opinion on changing the Zoning  
    Designation at this time. 
 
    Commissioners asked several questions regarding the change in the Zoning Designation, Mr.  
    Schmiesing provided the information. 
 
     Ordinance No. 6-15 was given a first reading. 
 
    Resolution No. R- 74-15  
    A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to sign the PY 2015 CHIP Program Partnership  
    Agreement by and between the Miami County Board of Commissioners and City of Piqua for the 
 
    Ohio Development Services Agency (ODSA) Community Housing Impact and Preservation (CHIP)  
    Program 
 
    Development Program Manager, Nikki Reese, presented the Staff Report. 
 
   The City of Piqua intends to partner with the Miami County Board of Commissioners to apply to the  
   Ohio Development Services Agency (ODSA) for funding under the Program Year 2015 Community  
   Housing Impact and Preservation (CHIP) Program.   Through this partnership Miami County and the  
   City of Piqua is eligible for $850,000 of CHIP Program funding provided we meet applicable  
   programing requirements, stated Ms. Reese. 
 
   The Chip application is due May 1, 2015 and the city will be notified sometime in September 2015 if  
   the application is funded.  If funded we will be able to start implementing the program in January of  
    2016 stated Ms. Reese. 
 
     City Manager Huff stated Nikki has only been with the City a short time but has already been able  
     to get close to 3 Million dollars in grant funds, and we are extremely pleased on what she is 
     accomplishing. 
 
   Public Comment 



 4

 
   No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-74-15 
   
   Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution R-74-15 be  
   adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Fess, Wilson, Terry and Martin. Nay: None. Motion carried  
   unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-7415 adopted. 

 
   RES. NO. R-75-15 
   A Resolution authorizing an amendment to the Zoning Map to change the Zoning Designation of  
   8620 and 8654 N. Co. Rd. 25-A to I-1 (Light Industrial) 
         
   Chris Schmiesing, City Planner, provided the Staff Report. 

 
    Mr. Schmiesing stated this was presented to the Planning Commission at a Public Hearing on April  
    14, 2015. Currently portions of the subject locations include a B (General Business) zoning  
    designation that is not entirely compatible with the business park use activities anticipated at this  
    location. The Planning Commission concluded the I-1 (Light Industrial) zoning designation would be 
    more appropriate zoning for tis location than the current B (General Business) zoning designation.   
    No came forward from the public to speak for or against this change in zoning designation. The 
    Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval of the proposed change to the zoning  
    designation of the subject property, stated Mr. Schmiesing. 
 
   Public Comment 
 
   No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-75-15. 
 
   Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-75-15  
   be adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Fess, Wilson, Terry, and Martin.  Nay: None.  Motion carried  
   unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-75-15 adopted. 
     
   RES. NO. R-76-15 
   A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to the McLean Company for the purchase of an asphalt 
   paver and compaction roller for the Street Division of Public Works          
       
   Brian Brookhart, Assistant Public Works Director, provided the Staff Report. 
 
  The Street Division of the Public Works Department currently has a small paver and roller, but with   
  City Commission approving more money to the Street Division of Public Works for paving, the current  
  equipment is not efficient at performing the amount of work we will be doing.  Both the asphalt paver  
  and the roller are on the State Bid and we also looked at the State Bid for Volvo on comparable  
  pavers and roller with the McLean Company being $89,184 less than Volvo, stated Mr. Brookhart. 
 
  With this new purchase it will give the Street Department the ability to pave more streets in a more 
  efficient and timely manner.  The new asphalt paver and compaction roller will be ordered right away  
  and delivery is expected in 30-60 days, said Mr. Brookhart. 
 
  Commissioners asked several questions regarding paving and the type of roller the City has now,  
  and its use on several of the city streets previously.   Mr. Brookhart answered all questions. 
 
   City Manager Huff stated the Commission held a work session on this last year. 
 
    PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
  No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-76-15. 
      
  Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-76- 
 15 be adopted. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Terry, Martin, Fess, and Vogt.  Nay: None.  Motion carried  
 unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-76-15 adopted. 



 5

     
 RES. NO.  R-77-15 
 An Emergency Resolution authorizing the City Manager to accept, and enter into a supplemental  
 Water Pollution Control Loan Fund Agreement on behalf of the City of Piqua for planning, design  
 and/or construction of Wastewater Facilities; and designating a dedicated repayment source for the 
  loan 
   
 Cynthia Holtzapple, Assistant City Manager/Finance Director, stated the  
 Dave Davis, Wastewater Plant Superintendent, stated the original Plan called for the use of High    
 Rate Treatment (BioActiflo) to remove the SSO from the collection system.    That plan is no longer an 
option, proven by the pilot study, as it was unable to perform as needed for the SSO removal.  The 
Amended Facility Plan calls for a new and approved liquid treatment train that will handle all projected 
flows.  This was presented to the City Commission at the February 2015 Work Session and also 
approved by the OEPA.  The Amended Facility Plan requires that the City perform Detailed Design 
next, and the original loan amount requested and previously approved will not cover the cost for this 
option.  The City submitted a supplemental loan application to WPCLF-DEFA for the additional $1.4 M 
needed.  The current interest rate is 2.03% but is subject to change each month until the loan is 
finalized.  The repayment term is for five year, Ms. Holtzapple. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-77-15. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No, R-77-15 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Terry, Martin, Fess, Vogt, and Wilson.  Nay, None. Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-77-15 adopted. 
 
 MONTHLY REPORTS – FEBRUARY 2015 
 
 Monthly Reports for February 2015 were accepted. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Jeff Lange, St. RT 66, came forward and provided a brief overview of the events of the upcoming 
Miami Valley Bicycling Summit on May 29, and the Cyclovia being held in downtown Piqua on 
Saturday, May 30, 2015. 
 
Mr. Lange also thanked all of POW volunteers who helped with the Annual River Clean Sweep 
recently, and announced the next River Clean Sweep is scheduled for July 18th, 2015 and encourage 
citizens to volunteer their time. 
 
Mr. Lange voiced his opinion and support of Ordinance No. 5-15. 
 
 Mr. Lange also started there is a lot of focus on the Bike Bath and would like to have more volunteers  
 to help oversee the use as they are only two volunteers left, and would like to have better 
 communication with the Police Department to report incidents as they see them in the future. 
 
Mr. Lange reminded citizens of several upcoming events in the City of Piqua, Rock Piqua Concerts on 
June 20, July 18, and August 1, Down the River Down a Beer to be held on August 22; both of the 
events will be held at Lock 9 Park. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked Mr. Lange for all his volunteer work and support of the City of Piqua. 
 
Brad Boehringer, Mound Street, came forward and voiced his support of the Miami Valley Cycling 
Summit stating he hopes to volunteer. 
 
Mr. Boehringer also voiced his opinion on Ordinance No. 5-15 stating he agrees it is needed, and 
asked if it would be possible to have the Bike Bath volunteers patrol the area in question. 



 6

 
City Manager Huff stated they would take it under consideration. 
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
City Manager Huff stated the Piqua Fire Department is heading up a CO Detector Program and have 
collected about $5000 from local businesses.  For information on receiving a CO Detector citizens can 
contact the Salvation Army. 
 
City Manager Huff announced Piqua Arbor Day is being celebrated on Monday April 27, 2015 at 
Edison Child Development Center. 
 
City Manager Huff stated the Power Systems is working on the Low Dam behind the Power Plant and 
the water level will be down for about a two week period while they are working. 
 
City Manager Huff stated the City received a Special Award for being certified as a Tree City USA for 
20 Years. 
 
City Manager Huff also announced the City Employee “Give Committee” was named the 2015 Career 
Based Intervention Partner of the Year for the Back Pack Program. The Back Pack Program provides 
non-perishable foods to high school students on weekends, holidays and during summer vacation. 
 
City Manager Huff stated the city plans to begin paving very soon with plans to pave approximately   
twenty streets this year. 
 
City Manager Huff asked Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Director Justin Sommer to 
provide an update on economic development in the City. 
 
Justin Sommer provided a brief update of the activities that have taken place in the City of Piqua, and 
recently announcing several businesses opening and how they are focusing on retention and 
expansion projects in the future. 
 
Commissioners Comments 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated there are such a small number of young adults that are creating the 
problems downtown, and hopes to be able to curtail some of the issues in the future. 
 
Commissioner Terry stated she received a complaint about broken glass on the Bike Path.  City 
Manager Huff stated it has been cleaned up several times and will continue to clean it up as noted. 
 
Commissioner Terry announced the City Clean-Up Day is scheduled for Saturday, May 9, and 
encouraged citizens to take a look around their homes and pick up and clean up as needed. 
 
Commissioner Terry also announced the Piqua Community Foundations Cakes for a Cause is 
scheduled for Friday, April 24 and encouraged citizens to go out to the Miami Valley Centre and view 
the cakes and place their bids. 
 
Commissioner Terry congratulated Piqua’s Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Director 
Justin Sommer, and Law Director Stacy Wall on their performance with the Piqua Arts Council 
Dancing with the Stars, They both did a wonderful job, stated Commissioner Terry. 
 
Commissioner Terry also reminded citizens the Taste of the Arts is scheduled for May 15, in 
downtown Piqua. 
 
Commissioner Vogt stated he also received an email about the broken glass on the Bike Path. 
 
Mayor Fess congratulated Justin Sommer and Stacy Wall on their wonderful dancing skills further 
stating she enjoyed watching them perform  along with enjoying the delicious dinner. 



 7

 
Justin Sommer stated he wanted to recognize the Piqua Arts Council and all the work they do in the 
Community. 
 
Chris Schmiesing, President of the Piqua Arts Council, came forward and provided a brief overview of 
the 2015 Dancing with the Piqua Stars event and of the other events the Piqua Arts Council provides. 
 
Mayor Fess stated the City of Piqua has a lot of great young people, with just a few causing problems. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Regular 
Commission Meeting at 9:35 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, and Terry. Nay: None. 

 
 
            
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR   

     PASSED: ______________________   
 

     ATTEST: _______________________ 
               REBECCA J. COOL 
          CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AMENDED ORDINANCE NO. 5‐15 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 94.23 (I) RELATING TO 
CURFEW AND PROHIBITIONS ON USE OF PARKS AND GAZEBO 

 WHEREAS, unsupervised juveniles are creating disturbances to the public 
peace, damage to the gazebo, and violent criminal behavior in Public Square Park 
and Veterans Memorial Way; and 

 WHEREAS, unsupervised juveniles are climbing on the gazebo roof and 
railings, creating a risk to their own safety, and ignoring kindly approaches and 
requests from citizens to desist; and 

 WHEREAS, existing curfews and park prohibitions are inadequate to 
address the current issues. 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the Piqua City commission, 
a majority of its members concurring that; 

SECTION 1.  The City of Piqua hereby amends Chapter 94.23 (I) as set forth 
below: (new language is underlined and deleted language is indicated by 
strikethrough): 

§ 94.23  CURFEW AND PROHIBITIONS ON USE OF PARKS AND GAZEBO. 

   No person shall do any of the following: 

   (A)   Enter or remain in Heritage Green, Das Park, Shawnee Park, Armory Park or High Street 
Park between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. of the following day, provided, however, 
that this section does not apply to a person attending organized activities in any of the parks that 
have been approved by the city. 

   (B)   Enter or remain in the Hollow Park between dusk and 7:00 a.m. of the following day or 
enter or remain in any of the other public parks of the city and the municipal golf course between 
the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. of the following day, provided, however, that this section 
does not apply to a person attending organized activities in the public parks that have been 
approved by the city. 

   (C)   Ignite or maintain any fire except in designated areas in accordance with fire laws. 

   (D)   Throw sticks, stones, or other dangerous objects or play golf except in designated areas. 

   (E)   Park motor vehicles within the public parks except in designated parking areas. 

   (F)   Hunt (excluding fishing), trap, or otherwise molest, injure, chase, or destroy any animal or 
bird in a public park. 

   (G)   Sell or offer for sale any article, privilege or service in a public park without authorization 
from the city. 

   (H)   Camp in any public park without authorization from the city. 



(I) Being a minor under 18 years of age, Enter or rRemain in Public Square Park and 
gazebo and Veterans Memorial Way (bounded by Market and High Streets and Wayne 
Street) between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. unless attending an official school, 
religious, or other recreational activity supervised by adults and sponsored by the city, a 
civic organization, or another similar entity that takes responsibility for the minor, or 
for the purpose of remaining in Public Square Park  for a non-sponsored event on that 
specific date is with an adult who had prior permission by the minor’s parent or legal 
guardian. between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m., except as to persons entering or 
remaining therein during organized activities as approved by the city.   
 
No person, regardless of age is permitted in Public Square Park between the hours of 
9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. unless attending an organized activity as approved by the City. 

   (J)   Possess or use any type of metal detection device in the public parks of the city. 

   (K)   Excavate, dig or remove sod, turf or soil in the public parks of the city without authority 
from the city to do so. 

SECTION 2. All other sections of Chapter 94 of the Piqua Municipal Code not 
amended herein shall remain in effect as is. 

SECTION 3.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 

 

______________________ 

LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

 

PASSED:   _______________________ 

 

 

ATTEST:    _______________________ 

        REBECCA J. COOL 

                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 

 



 

Item # 2
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
April 21, 2015 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 94.23 (I) RELATING TO 
CURFEW AND PROHIBITIONS ON USE OF PARKS AND GAZEBO 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Bruce A. Jamison, CLEE – Chief of Police 
Department: Police 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director;  Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
As discussed at the February 12, 2015 Commission Work Session, multiple 
complaints have been received regarding unruly behavior of unsupervised 
juveniles disturbing patrons of the Fort Piqua Plaza (library, Plaza rentals, food 
service entities).  Efforts to curtail these problems have ranged from discussions 
with the children that frequent the area on proper behavior and language, to 
physical arrests of juveniles.  During one arrest the level of defiance 
encountered with these children was evident - a young female aggressively 
resisted the officer, necessitating use of force to complete the arrest.  Most 
citizens have not placed calls to the police, but have later advised us of their fear 
to be in the area, thus avoiding getting out of their cars.  Besides employing 
intimidating tactics on seniors, several of the youth use offensive language that 
is constitutionally protected, but is extremely offensive to adults coming to the 
area.  These adults include both Piqua citizens and visitors to our city. 
 
Damage to the gazebo has occurred and has been difficult to track back to any 
one responsible individual.  Youth have been observed in various dangerous 
activities around the gazebo, including climbing on its roof.  When officers 
respond, this activity has usually already ceased. 
 
This ordinance would expand the existing park curfew and prohibitions and 
require minors using the park facilities in that immediate area to be supervised.  
This allows for enjoyment of the facilities in structured settings where the 
juvenile’s behavior can been controlled for the enjoyment of everyone in the 
area.  It is also safer for the children.  The language regarding proper 
supervision already exists in Chapter 139 of our City Code to allow exceptions 
to the curfew for minors engaged in supervised activities outside of the 
nighttime curfew hours. 
 



In conjunction with the ordinance, non-legislative regulations will be applied to 
the areas owned by the city that are neither part of the leased space nor the park 
(most notably, the stairs and ramp near the library entrance).  Library and police 
staff will both be able to monitor this area, issue warnings when appropriate, 
and then the police can take enforcement action against those that do not 
comply with the regulations and warnings. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  -0- 
Expenditure $:  -0- 
Source of Funds: n/a 
Narrative:  I anticipate that providing this ordinance as a tool for 

officers responding to complaints of unruly behavior will 
quickly result in decreased need for police response to the 
area for unruly juvenile behavior. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the amended ordinance. 
2. Deny changes to the ordinance. 
3. Propose alternative ideas for constitutionally-sound legislation. 
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

2/12/15 – Commission Work Session  (direction given to move forward) 
4/21/15 – first reading, 5/5/15 – second reading, 5/19/15 – third reading.  
Enforcement to begin at earliest possible legal date.  The ordinance and 
regulations will be communicated to the youth most likely to be affected as soon 
as possible, as we need to start controlling them with existing resources due to 
problems starting with the Spring weather. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Pass this ordinance. 

ATTACHMENTS  Ordinance No.  5-15 

 



 

Item #3 
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE April 15, 2015 

REPORT TITLE 
(Match resolution/ordinance title) 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 154.027 OF THE CITY OF 
PIQUA CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ALLOW A PLACE OF WORSHIP IN 
A I-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL ZONING DISTRICT 

SUBMITTED BY Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

Development Department 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

Department Director  Planning Commission  

BACKGROUND 
(Description, background, justification) 

This item was presented to the Planning Commission in response to a request 
from the owner of the property located at 8654 County Road 25-A in Piqua.  
The owner desires to lease use the property to a Place of Worship.  Currently a 
Place of Worship is permitted in all districts except the Industrial zoning 
designations.  Place of Worship uses often serve a regional base and prefer close 
proximity to major highways.  Vacant industrial or commercial building spaces 
are often well suited to the needs of this use type.   

The Religious Land Use and Institutionalized Persons Act of 2000 (RLUIPA) 
affords a house of worship broad protections from zoning and landmarking 
laws.  RLUIPA prohibits zoning and landmarking laws that substantially burden 
the religious exercise of churches or other religious assemblies or institutions 
absent the least restrictive means of furthering a compelling governmental 
interest.  RLUIPA also discourages a local government use of formal or 
informal procedures for making individualized assessments of a property's uses 
as it relates to a house of worship use activity. 

In reviewing this request the Planning Commission concluded that it would be 
prudent to include provisions to allow the Place of Worship as a principal 
permitted use in the I-1 Light Industrial zoning district and heard no objections 
from the public concerning the proposed amendment.  

BUDGET/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Project costs and funding sources) 

Budgeted $:  0 

Expenditure $:  0 



Source of Funds: N/A 

Narrative:   

OPTIONS 
(Include deny /approval option) 

 

1. Adopt the ordinance and approve the proposed amendment to the Land 
Use; Zoning chapter of the Codified Ordinances. 

2. Defeat the ordinance and deny the proposed amendment to the Land Use; 
Zoning chapter of the Codified Ordinances. 

PROJECT TIMELINE April 14, 2015 – Planning Commission – Public Hearing 

April 21, 2015 – City Commission – 1st Reading  

May 5, 2015 – City Commission – 2nd Reading 

May 19, 2015 – City Commission – 3rd Reading 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Approve the proposed amendment to allow the use type as stated. 

ATTACHMENTS Ordinance, Exhibit A  

 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-78-15 
 

AN EMERGENCY RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION 
TO ENTER INTO CONTRACT WITH CDM-SMITH FOR 
AMENDMENT NO: 2 TO THE ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR A 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT DETAILED DESIGN  

 
 WHEREAS, On May 21st 2013 Piqua City Commission approved A 
contract with CDM-Smith for the removal of the Sanitary Sewer Overflows to 
the Great Miami River; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Ohio EPA has mandated in the City of Piqua’s NPDES 
Permit of Discharge that the SSO be eliminated; and 
 

WHEREAS, CDM has prepared the Amended Master Plan, which has 
been approved by the Director of the Ohio EPA, provides the procedure that 
the City must follow to meet all of the Ohio EPA requirements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, due to the approved timeline from the OEPA, a delay 
caused by bidding the professional services would be detrimental to the 
Master Plan mandates, and Piqua Municipal Code §34.19 allows for the 
bidding process to be waived due to the nature of the agreement being for 
professional services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the EPA has issued a permit for completion of the project 
with a deadline; and   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the 
City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The City Manager is authorized to enter into a contract with 
CDM-Smith to perform Professional Engineering Services for the Detailed 
Design, Amendment NO: 2;  

 
SEC. 2: The cost involved is not to exceed $3,957,470.00 and will be 

funded by Wastewater Plant Budget 2015, 2016 & 2017/DEFA Design loan. 
 
 SEC. 3: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is 
hereby authorized to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate 
account of the City treasury in payment according to contract terms; 



 
 
 SEC. 4: In accordance with section 34.19 of the Piqua Municipal Code, 
the professional services does not need to be bid finding that the City 
Manager has determined that bidding such services would cause a delay 
detrimental to the Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion 
Project as already approved by the OEPA and in accordance with the OEPA 
mandates regarding treatment of flows and is a professional service under 
Piqua Municipal Code §34.19. 
 
 SEC. 5: This Resolution is declared an emergency for the immediate 
preservation of the public peace, health or safety in the City of Piqua as the 
City of Piqua is under an approved plan by the EPA and has a certain time 
period to complete the project before the permit expires and the project has 
already been delayed twice so the permit expiration date is even more critical 
to ensure completion.   
 
 
           
      __________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 4   
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

May 5, 2015 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

An Emergency Resolution requesting authorization to enter into contract with 
CDM-Smith for Amendment No: 2 to the Engineering Services for a 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Detailed Design 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:   Dave Davis, Wastewater Plant Supt. 
Department:      Utilities Division-Wastewater 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director;  Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
The Facility Plan has been modified to reflect the change to a new liquid 
treatment system and dates have been modified in order to accomplish this 
scope of work. The Ohio EPA has approved Amendment #1 and the schedule in 
the NPDES Permit for discharge. This scope of work will start the detailed 
design of the WWTP improvements and take us to, and through the award of the 
construction bidding process. 
This does not include Construction phase engineering.  
There will be expenses in 2016 & 2017 Budget years for this legislation. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  2015 Budget- $300,000.00 
Expenditure $:  Total $3,850,000.00 + an approx.  2.79% contingency of 

$107,470.00= $3,957,470.00 
Source of Funds: OEPA-DEFA low interest loans for Planning & Design. 
Narrative:  The Planning and Design Loan from OEPA-WPCLF was 

approved. Sewer rates will need to be adjusted in order to 
pay back the Planning and Design Loan.  
2015 is also the payoff year for a previous major loan. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Deny and the city would face possible fines and administrative action by 
the OEPA Director for not meeting the approved schedule for SSO removal 
along with possible Findings and Orders from the Ohio Attorney General. 

2. Approve and continue to move forward with Facility Master Plan. 
3.  

4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

This timeline will take the city all the way to the Construction Phase of the 
Project. See attached Schedule. 



 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Approve and continue with meeting the NPDES Schedule of Compliance 

ATTACHMENTS  Amendment NO. 2 Agreement between owner and Engineer. 
Milestone Schedule from approved Facility Plan. 
OEPA Approval Letter 

 

































































   RESOLUTION  NO. R-79-15 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO THE 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REVOLVING LOAN FUND (RLF) AGREEMENT WITH 

THE STATE OF OHIO DEVELOPMENT SERVICES AGENCY FOR THE PERIOD 
JANUARY 1, 2015 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2017 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has been a recipient of Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) Microenterprise and Downtown Revitalization grant funds 
administered by the Ohio Development Services Agency, Office of Community 
Development (ODSA, OCD); and  

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has received program income as a result from administering 
the CDBG Microenterprise and Downtown Revitalization grant funds ; and 

WHEREAS, the ODSA, OCD has requested the City of Piqua to execute an Economic 
Development Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) Agreement consistent with the rules and regulations 
promulgated by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development; and 

WHEREAS, the ODSA, OCD requires the City of Piqua to consolidate all existing 
Microenterprise RLF and Downtown Revitalization RLF accounts into a single Economic 
Development RLF account no later than December 31, 2015, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has ninety (90) days after execution of the Economic 
Development RLF Administration Agreement to adopt an Economic Development RLF plan 
and submit to ODSA, OCD. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that 

 SEC. 1: The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into the Economic 
Development Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) Administration Agreement with the State of Ohio 
Development Services Agency, Office of Community Development for the Period 
January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2017. 

 SEC. 2  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 
period allowed by law. 
 
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   ______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 
 

(Shou

 

 
AG

 
 

(Incl

ME

RE
uld match reso

SU

GENDA CLA

APPROVA

BA
ludes descriptio

a

EETING DAT

EPORT TITL
olution/ordinanc

title

UBMITTED B

ASSIFICATIO

ALS/REVIEW

ACKGROUN
on, background
and justification

 

 
E 

May 5, 2

E 
ce 
e) 

 

A Resol
Develop
Ohio D
through

Y 
Name &
Departm

N 
 

Conse

S 
City M
Asst. 

  Departm
 

D 
d, 
n) 

 

 In Mar
Develop
OCD) o
Agreeme
Adminis
Microen
Econom
Revolvin
 
The purp
ensure th
conjunct
for a thr
renewed
ODSA r
 
The City
RLF Pla
ODSA, 
establish
delinque
 
Currentl
$45,394
These tw
 
The ED 
City of 

 

Com
Staf
 
 
 
 

2015 

lution auth
pment Revo

Developmen
h December

& Title:  Justi
ment:  Devel

ent 

Manager 
City Manag
ment Directo
rch 2015, t
pment Servic
on Econom
ent and Pro
stered CDBG
nterprise RL

mic Developm
ng Loan Fun

pose of the 
hat commun
tion with ad
ree-year per

d every three
ecapturing th

y of Piqua w
an within 9
OCD.  The 

hed board st
encies and de

y, the City 
.39 and a C

wo RLF bala

RLF’s will 
Piqua for-

mmissi
ff Repo

horizing the
olving Loan
nt Services
r 31, 2017 
in A. Somm
opment 
 

Ordinanc

ger/Developm
or;  
the City of
ces Agency

mic Develop
ogram chan
G Economic
LFs must co
ment RLF A
nd (RLF) Ad

agreement 
nities underst
dministering 
riod, beginni
e years.  Fa
he ED RLF 

will also be
90 days afte

plan must i
tructure, loan
efaults. 

of Piqua h
CDBG Dow
ances will be

be availabl
-profit busin

ion Ag
ort 

e City Man
n Fund (RL

s Agency f

mer, Assista

ce 
 

ment 

f Piqua rec
, Office of 

pment Revo
nges.  Com
c Developme
onsolidate a
Account an

dministration

is to mainta
tand and adh
the RLF pr
ing January
ailure to ex
dollars. 

e required to
er execution
include any 
n review cri

has a CDBG
wntown Rev
e consolidate

le for low-in
nesses or f

genda  

nager to en
LF) Agreem
for the pe

ant City Man

  Resolution

Asst. City M
Law Directo
Other:  

ceived corr
Community

olving Loan
mmunities ad

ent RLF’s, D
all existing 
nd sign an E
n Agreement

ain adequate
here to the te
rogram.  Thi
y 1, 2015.  T
xecute this a

o adopt an 
n of this ag

designated 
iteria, and p

G Microent
vitalization R
ed into a sing

nterest, fixed
for publicall

Item

          

nter into the
ment with t
eriod Janua

nager/ED D

n 
 

Re

Manager/Fin
or 

espondence 
y Developm
n Fund Ad
dministering
Downtown R

balances in
Economic D
t. 

e program o
erms of the a
is agreemen
This agreem
agreement m

Economic D
greement an
administrati

procedures f

erprise RLF
RLF balance
gle ED RLF 

d asset, gap 
ly owned i

m #5

 

e Economic
the State o
ary 1, 2015

Director 

gular 

nance 

from Ohio
ment (ODSA
dministration

g Ohio State
RLFs, and/o
nto a single
Developmen

oversight and
agreement in

nt is effective
ment must be
may result in

Developmen
nd submit to
ive agent, an
for workouts

F balance o
e of $37.24
account. 

financing to
infrastructure

c 
f 
5 

o 
A, 
n 
e 
r 
e 

nt 

d 
n 
e 
e 
n 

nt 
o 
n 
s, 

f 
4.  

o 
e 



improvements directly related to job creation or retention by a for-profit 
business.    
 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Est. Budgeted $:  $0.00 
Est. Expenditure 
$:  

$0.00 

Source of Funds:  
Narrative:  There is no expense with this request.   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Adopt the Resolution and authorize the City Manager to sign the ED 
RLF Administration Agreement. 

2. Deny the Resolution and reject the partnership agreement.  
3.  

4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

Once the ED RLF Administration Agreement is signed by the City 
Manager, it must be submitted to ODSA, OCD for their signature.  An ED 
RLF plan must be adopted and submitted to the State within 90 days of 
signing the ED RLF Administration Agreement.  The CDBG 
Microenterprise RLF and Downtown Revitalization RLF must be 
consolidated into a single ED RLF account by December 31, 2015.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Staff recommends that the City Commission adopt the resolution which 
would allow the City Manager to sign Economic Development Revolving 
Loan Fund (RLF) Administration Agreement by and between the Ohio 
Development Services Agency and the City of Piqua, Ohio. 

ATTACHMENTS   ED RLF Administration Agreement 

 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REVOLVING LOAN FUND 
ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 

 
 

1 
 

This Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund Administration Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into 
by and between the State of Ohio, Development Services Agency, located at 77 South High Street, P.O. Box 1001, Columbus, 
Ohio 43216-1001 (the “Grantor”), and the City of Piqua, located at 201 W. Water Street, Piqua Ohio 45356 with F.T.I. Number: 
FTI 31-600136  (the “Grantee”), and shall be effective beginning  January 1, 2015 (the “Effective Date”) and terminate December 
31, 2017 (the “Termination Date”). 
 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
 
 A. Grantor, through its Office of Community Development (“OCD”), administers the federal Community Development 
Block Grant (“CDBG”) Program for the State of Ohio. 
 
 B. Grantee has been determined to be an eligible recipient of CDBG funds and Grantee has been awarded CDBG funds 
from the Grantor for use to finance eligible activities that may generate Program Income as defined herein. 
 
 C. Grantor has recognized the positive impact on community development initiatives when the use of Program Income is 
locally determined. Grantor has permitted the establishment of Economic Development Revolving Loan Funds within local political 
subdivisions to meet the primary development goals of:  1) encouraging the expansion and stability of the economic base of the 
designated area of the Revolving Loan Fund; and 2) encouraging increased employment opportunities, particularly for low- and 
moderate-income persons in designated areas of the Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund. 

 
D. Grantor desires to have Grantee to administer an Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund using the CDBG 

Program Income and Grantee desires to administer an Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund using the CDBG Program 
Income for the purposes stated above. 

 
E. Grantee has adopted Resolution (or Ordinance) # ___________ on __________, _______ (date) authorizing the 

execution of this Agreement. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises and covenants hereinafter set forth, and 
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as 
follows: 
 
 

STATEMENT OF THE AGREEMENT 
 
 

1. Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund Capitalization.  Grantee shall deposit any and all Economic 
Development Program Income into an Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund account held by the Grantee.  

 
2. Definitions.   
 
 
a.) Revolving Loan Fund (“RLF”) is a separate fund established for the purpose of accounting for Program Income 

and of carrying out the specific activities designated in OCD’s RLF Policies and Procedures Manual, which, in 
turn, generate payments to the fund (“RLF Funds”) for the continued use in carrying out the same activities. 

 
b.) Economic Development Program Income is defined as gross income received by the recipient directly 

generated from the use of Ohio State Administered CDBG Program funds for economic development, 
downtown revitalization, and microenterprise business development activities. 

 
3. RLF Plan and Use of Funds.  Grantee has adopted an RLF Plan that has been previously submitted and 

approved by the Grantor. Within ninety (90) days after execution of this Agreement Grantee shall update its current RLF Plan and 
submit the revisions to the Grantor for approval. The updated plan must include the policies and procedures established by Grantor 
in the OCD RLF Policies and Procedures Manual. The plan must include any designated administrative agent, an established board 
structure, loan review criteria, and procedures for workouts, delinquencies and defaults. Any changes to the local RLF Plan must be 
submitted to Grantor for approval. Grantee shall use the RLF Funds solely for the stated purposes set forth in this Agreement, 
OCD’s RLF Policies and Procedures Manual and the Local RLF Plan. 

 
4. CDBG Economic Development RLF Consolidation.  Grantee shall consolidate all existing Economic 

Development RLF, Downtown RLF, and Microenterprise RLF accounts into an Economic Development RLF Account held by the 
Grantee no later than December 31, 2015. 

 
 



 

 2

5. Loan Approvals.  Grantee shall submit to Grantor an RLF grant/loan approval request for each project being 
considered for RLF assistance. Grantee must receive Grantor’s written approval prior to the commencement of the Grantee’s local 
RLF project. 

 
6. National Objective Requirements.  Grantee shall ensure that all projects funded as a result of this Agreement 

meet the national objective of creating or retaining jobs for low-and-moderate income persons. Any projects not meeting this 
requirement must submit a request for waiver to Grantor. Grantor will review the request to determine if the project meets a CDBG 
National Objective. Written approval from Grantor must be received prior to the local RLF issuing approval for the project. 

 
7. Subrecipient Agreements.  Grantee shall not subgrant the Economic Development Program Income funds to 

any other local political jurisdiction or non-profit agency. Grantee may contract with a non-profit agency to administer the RLF 
Funds, but the funds are to remain with the Grantee in the Revolving Loan Fund Account. If there is a change in the designated 
administrative agent of the RLF Funds, it is the responsibility of the Grantee to notify OCD within fifteen (15) days of any change in 
status of the designated administrative agent. 

 
8. Accounting of RLF Funds.   RLF Funds shall be deposited and maintained in a separate fund account upon 

the books and records of Grantee (the "Account"). Grantee shall keep all records of the Account in a manner that is consistent with 
generally accepted accounting principles. All disbursements from the Account shall be for obligations incurred in the performance of 
this Agreement and shall be supported by contracts, invoices, vouchers, and other data, as appropriate, evidencing the necessity of 
such expenditure.   
 

9. Reporting Requirements.  Grantee shall submit RLF Status Reports to Grantor no more than thirty (30) days 
after notification of the RLF Status Report request. RLF Status Reports may include but are not limited to the following: program 
income; program activities; and program outcomes.  

 
10. Compliance with General CDBG Requirements.  Grantee shall comply with all applicable provisions of the 

statutes, rules, regulations and guidelines as passed by Congress or promulgated by the Secretary of the Department of Housing 
and Urban Development (HUD). 

 
11. Compliance with Environmental Requirements.  Grantee shall comply with the provisions of the National 

Environmental Policy Act of 1969 insofar as the provisions of such Act apply to activities undertaken with CDBG Economic 
Development Program Income. Grantee agrees to assume responsibility for preparing Environmental Assessments and 
Environmental Reviews as required. 

 
12. Acquisition and Relocation.  Grantee shall comply with the relocation requirements of Title II and the 

acquisition requirements of Title III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as 
amended, and the implementation regulations set forth in 570.488 and 49 CFR Part 24 as they apply to the activities covered by this 
Agreement. Grantee shall comply with the process established under the Anti-Displacement and Relocation Plan. 

 
13. Term of the Agreement.  This Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall terminate on the 

Termination Date, unless otherwise modified pursuant to Section 231 (f) herein. At least sixty (60) days prior to the Termination 
Date, Grantor will determine if the Grantee continues to have the capacity to administer the RLF Funds based on the performance of 
the Grantee and its designated administrative agent. Grantor shall promptly notify Grantee in writing of a determination questioning 
administrative capacity. Grantor reserves the right to determine if the State of Ohio will renew the Agreement to allow the Grantee to 
administer the RLF, have the Grantee close out the RLF by executing a CDBG Closeout Agreement or recapture the RLF Funds. 

 
14. Records, Access and Maintenance.   Grantee shall establish and maintain for at least three (3) years from the 

expiration of this Agreement, all direct information and such records as are reasonably related to the administration of an RLF as set 
forth in the OCD RLF Policies and Procedures Manual. Both parties further agree that records required by the Grantor with respect 
to any questioned costs, audit disallowances, litigation or dispute between the Grantor and the Grantee shall be maintained for the 
time needed for the resolution of said question and that in the event of early termination of this Agreement as provided in Section 22 
of this Agreement, or if for any other reason the Grantor shall require a review of the records related to the RLF Funds, the Grantee 
shall, at its own cost and expense, segregate all such records related to the RLF Funds from its other records of operation. 

 
15. Inspections.   At any time during normal business hours upon three days prior written notice and as often as 

Grantor may deem necessary and in such a manner as not to interfere unreasonably with the normal business operations, Grantee 
shall make available to Grantor, and to appropriate state agencies or officials, for examination,  all of its records with respect to 
matters covered by this Agreement including, but not limited to, records of personnel and conditions of employment and shall permit 
Grantor to audit, examine and make excerpts or transcripts from such records. 
 

16. Audits.   The Grant Funds shall be audited according to the requirements of the Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) Circular A-133. In addition, Grantee must follow the guidelines provided in the Office of Community Development 
(OCD) Financial Management Rules and Regulations Handbook. An audited Grantee shall submit to the Federal Clearinghouse and 
make available for public inspection a copy of the audit, data collection form and reporting package as described in OMB Circular A-
133 within the earlier of 30 days after receipt of the auditor’s report(s) or nine months after the end of the audit period. In addition: 
 

a. If Grantee’s total federal expenditures in a fiscal year equal or exceed the threshold defined in the OMB Circular 
A-133 and the OCD Financial Management Rules and Regulations, and the audit meets one of the six 
conditions listed below, a copy of the audit must be submitted to Grantor’s Audit Office: 



 

 3

 
i. The opinion on the financial statements is other than unqualified. 
ii. The report identifies a material instance of noncompliance. 
iii. The report identifies a reportable condition or material weakness in internal controls. 
iv. The report contains a schedule of findings and questioned costs applicable to an OCD-awarded 

grant. 
v. The report identifies an instance or indicator of an illegal act that could result in criminal prosecution. 
vi. The report contains an uncorrected significant finding from a prior related audit. 
 

b. If Grantee’s total federal expenditures in a fiscal year equal or exceed the threshold defined in the OMB Circular 
A-133 and the OCD Financial Management Rules and Regulations, and the audit does not meet any of the 
conditions listed above, a “no finding” letter may be submitted instead of the audit to Grantor’s Audit Office.  

 
c. The report on compliance within the single audit shall be based on the Compliance Supplement for Audits of 

States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. The Supplement is published annually by OMB as is 
made available at http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/financial_fin_single_audit. 

 
d. Grantee shall permit and not constrain the Grantor or its designee, HUD or the U.S. Government Accountability 

Office (GAO) from access to or auditing of records and financial statements as necessary to comply with OMB 
Circular A-133. 

 
17. Equal Employment Opportunity.   Grantee will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 

employment because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin, disability, age, military status, or ancestry. Grantee will take 
affirmative action to ensure that applicants are considered for employment and that employees are treated during employment, 
without regard to their race, religion, color, sex, national origin, disability, age, military status, or ancestry. Grantee will, in all 
solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of Grantee, state that all qualified applicants will receive 
consideration for employment without regard to race, religion, color, sex, national origin, disability, age, military status or ancestry. 
Grantee will incorporate the requirements of this paragraph in all of its respective contracts for any of the work for which the Grant 
Funds are expended (other than subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw materials), and Grantee will require all of its 
subcontractors for any part of such work to incorporate such requirements in all subcontracts for such work. 

 
18. Prevailing Wage Rates and Labor Standards.   In the commission of any Project(s) wherein federal funds are 

used to finance construction work as defined in the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Title 29, Part 5 to the extent that such 
activity is subject to the Davis-Bacon Act (40 United States Code (U.S.C.) 3141 to 3148, as amended), all laborers and mechanics 
employed by contractors or subcontractors on any such construction work assisted under this Agreement shall be paid the wages 
that have been determined by the U.S. Secretary of Labor to be the wages prevailing for the corresponding classes of laborers and 
mechanics employed on project(s) of a character similar to the contract work in the civil subdivision of the state wherein the work is 
to be performed. In addition, all laborers and mechanics employed by contractors or subcontractors on such construction work 
assisted under this Agreement shall be paid overtime compensation in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Work Hours 
and Safety Standards Act, 40 U.S.C. 3701 to 3708. Furthermore, Grantee shall require that all contractors and subcontractors shall 
comply with all regulations issued pursuant to these acts and with other applicable federal and state laws and regulations. 
 
 In the event that the construction work to be undertaken does not lie within the purview of the Davis-Bacon Act, and 
neither the federal government nor any of its agencies prescribes predetermined minimum wages to be paid to mechanics and 
laborers to be employed in the construction work to be assisted by this Project(s), Grantee will comply with the provisions of Ohio 
Revised Code (ORC) Sections 4115.03 to 4115.16, inclusive, as applicable, with respect to the payment of all mechanics and 
laborers employed in such construction work. 
 

19. Use of Federal Grant Funds.   Grantee acknowledges that this Agreement involves the use of federal funds 
and as such, is subject to audit by the agency of the United States Government granting the funds to Grantor for the purposes of 
performing the work and activities as listed in Attachment A. Grantee shall fully indemnify Grantor for any cost of Grantee which is 
disallowed by said federal agency and which must be refunded thereto by Grantor. 

 
20. Property and Equipment Purchases.   All items purchased by Grantee are and shall remain the property of 

Grantee, except if Grantor exercises its right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to paragraph 22, in which case all property and 
equipment purchased by Grantee with any Grant Funds herein awarded shall revert to Grantor. Grantee shall provide for the 
security and safekeeping of all items obtained through this Agreement. 
 

21. Certification of Grant Funds.   None of the rights, duties and obligations described in this Agreement shall be 
binding on either party until all statutory provisions of the ORC, including but not limited to, Section 126.07, have been complied 
with, and until such time as all funds have been made available and are forthcoming from the appropriate state agencies. 
 

22. Termination.   
 
a. Grantor may immediately terminate this Agreement by giving reasonable written notice of termination to 

Grantee for any of the following occurrences: 
 

i. Failure of Grantee to fulfill in a timely and proper manner any of its obligations under this Agreement. 
 



 

 4

ii. Failure of Grantee to submit any report required by this Agreement that is complete and accurate. 
 

iii. Failure of Grantee to use the Grant Funds for the stated purposes in this Agreement. 
 

iv. Cancellation of the grant of funds from HUD. 
 

b. Early Termination:   Grantor may also terminate this Agreement if Grantee (i) defaults under another Agreement 
between the Grantor and/or the Tax Credit Authority and Grantee and/or the Clean Ohio Council, (ii) admits 
Grantee’s inability to pay its debts as such debts become due, (iii) Grantee commences a voluntary bankruptcy, 
(iv) an involuntary bankruptcy action occurs against Grantee which remains undismissed or unstayed for 60 
days, (v) Grantee fails to meet the minimum funding requirements under the Employee Retirement Income 
Security Act or other such employee benefits plan, or (vi) Grantor has reason to believe Grantee has ceased 
operations at the Project location. The events permitting early termination by Grantor shall be considered a 
default by Grantee and subject to the Effects of Termination under Section 18 of this Agreement. 
 

c. Grantor reserves the right to suspend the administration of the RLF at any time for failure of the Grantee or its 
designated administrative agent to administer the local RLF in compliance with the OCD RLF Policies and 
Procedures Manual which is not attached but incorporated herein by reference. Throughout this Agreement, 
Grantee and any designated administrative agent must continue to demonstrate administrative capacity in the 
administration of the RLF. Failure to accurately report on the RLF Funds could result in Grantor placing the RLF 
Funds on hold or recapturing the RLF Funds. Grantor also reserves the right to request the RLF Funds be 
returned to the State of Ohio upon failure to comply with the OCD RLF Policies and Procedures Manual. 
 

23. Effects of Termination.   Within 60 days after termination of Agreement, Grantee shall surrender all reports, 
documents, and other materials assembled and prepared pursuant to Agreement, which shall become the property of Grantor, 
unless otherwise directed by Grantor. After receiving written notice of termination, Grantee shall incur no new obligations and shall 
cancel as many outstanding obligations as possible. Upon compliance with this Section, Grantee shall receive compensation for all 
activities satisfactorily performed prior to the effective date of termination. 

 
24. Forbearance Not a Waiver.   No act of forbearance or failure to insist on the prompt performance by Grantee 

of its obligations under Agreement, either express or implied, shall be construed as a waiver by Grantor of any of its rights 
hereunder. 
 

25. Conflict of Interest.   No personnel of Grantee, contractor of Grantee or personnel of any such contractor, and 
no public official who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the review or approval of any work completed 
under this Agreement, shall, prior to the completion of such work, voluntarily or involuntarily acquire any personal interest, direct or 
indirect, which is incompatible or in conflict with the discharge or fulfillment of his or her functions or responsibilities with respect to 
the completion of the work contemplated under this Agreement. Grantee shall immediately disclose in writing to Grantor any such 
person who, prior to or after the execution of this Agreement, acquires any personal interest, voluntarily or involuntarily. Grantee 
shall cause any such person who, prior to or after the execution of this Agreement, acquires any personal interest, voluntarily or 
involuntarily, to immediately disclose such interest to Grantor in writing. Thereafter, such person shall not participate in any action 
affecting the work under this Agreement unless Grantor determines that, in light of the personal interest disclosed, his or her 
participation in any such action would not be contrary to the public interest. 
 

26. Liability.   Unless Grantee is an Ohio political sub-division and can prove to Grantor that it is self-insured, 
Grantee shall maintain liability and property insurance to cover actionable legal claims for liability or loss which are the result of 
injury to or death of any person, damage to property (including property of Grantor) caused by the negligent acts or omissions, or 
negligent conduct of Grantee, to the extent permitted by law, in connection with the activities of this Agreement. Furthermore, each 
party to this Agreement agrees to be liable for the negligent acts or negligent omissions by or through itself, its employees, agents 
and subcontractors. Each party further agrees to defend itself and themselves and pay any judgments and costs arising out of such 
negligent acts or omissions, and nothing in this Agreement shall impute or transfer any such liability from one to the other. 
  

27. Adherence to State and Federal Laws, Regulations. 
 
a. General.   Grantee shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws in the performance of Grantee’s 

obligations under Agreement, the completion of the Project and the operation of the Project as long as Grantee 
has any obligation to Grantor under Agreement. Without limiting the generality of such obligation, Grantee shall 
pay or cause to be paid all unemployment compensation, insurance premiums, workers’ compensation 
premiums, income tax withholding, social security withhold, and any and all other taxes or payroll deductions 
required for all employees engaged by Grantee in connection with the Project, and Grantee shall comply with all 
applicable environmental, zoning, planning and building laws and regulations. 

 
b. Ethics.   Grantee, by its signature on this document, certifies: (1) it has reviewed and understands the Ohio 

ethics and conflicts of interest laws including, without limitation, ORC Section 102.01 et seq., Sections 2921.01, 
2921.42, 2921.421, 2921.43, and 3517.13(I) and (J), and (2) will take no action inconsistent with those laws, as 
any of them may be amended or supplemented from time to time. Grantee understands that failure to comply 
with the Ohio ethics and conflict of interest laws, is in itself, grounds for termination of Agreement and the grant 
of funds made pursuant to Agreement and may result in the loss of other contracts or grants with the State of 
Ohio. 



 

 5

 
28. Outstanding Liabilities.   Grantee represents and warrants that it does not owe: (1) any delinquent taxes to 

the State of Ohio (the "State") or a political subdivision of the State; (2) any amount to the State or a state agency for the 
administration or enforcement of any environmental laws of the State; and (3) any other amount to the State, a state agency or a 
political subdivision of the State that are past due, whether or not the amounts owed are being contested in a court of law. 

 
29. Falsification of Information.   Grantee affirmatively covenants that it has made no false statements to Grantor 

in the process of obtaining this award of the Grant Funds. If Grantee has knowingly made a false statement to Grantor to obtain this 
award of the Grant Funds, Grantee shall be required to return all the Grant Funds immediately pursuant to ORC Section 9.66(C) (2) 
and shall be ineligible for any future economic development assistance from the State, any state agency or a political subdivision 
pursuant to ORC Section 9.66(C) (1). Any person who provides a false statement to secure economic development assistance may 
be guilty of falsification, a misdemeanor of the first degree, pursuant to ORC 2921.13(F)(1), which is punishable by a fine of not 
more than $1,000 and/or a term of imprisonment of not more than one hundred eighty (180) days. 
  

30. Public Records.   Grantee acknowledges that Agreement and other records in the possession or control of 
Grantor regarding the Project are public records under ORC Section 149.43 and are open to public inspection unless a legal 
exemption applies.   
 

31. Miscellaneous. 
 

a. Governing Law.   Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Ohio as to all matters, including but 
not limited to matters of validity, construction, effect and performance. 

 
b. Forum and Venue.   Grantee irrevocably submits to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of any federal or state court 

sitting in Columbus, Ohio, in any action or proceeding arising out of or related to Agreement, Grantee agrees 
that all claims in respect of such action or proceeding may be heard and determined in any such court, and 
Grantee irrevocably waives any objection it may now or hereafter have as to the venue of any such action or 
proceeding brought in such court or that such court is an inconvenient forum. Nothing in this Agreement shall 
limit the right of Grantor to bring any action or proceedings against Grantee in the courts of any other 
jurisdiction. Any actions or proceedings by Grantee against Grantor or the State of Ohio involving, directly or 
indirectly, any matter in any way arising out of or related to Agreement shall be brought only in a court in 
Columbus, Ohio. 

 
c. Entire Agreement.   Agreement, including its exhibits and documents incorporated into it by reference, 

constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the parties with respect to its subject matter. Any prior 
written or verbal agreement, understanding or representation between parties or any of their respective officers, 
agents, or employees is superseded and no such prior agreement, understanding or representation shall be 
deemed to affect or modify any of the terms or conditions of Agreement. 

 
d. Severability.   Whenever possible, each provision of Agreement shall be interpreted in such manner as to be 

effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of Agreement is held to be prohibited by or invalid 
under applicable law, such provision shall be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, 
without invalidating the remainder of such provisions of this Agreement. 

 
e. Notices.   All notices, consents, demands, requests and other communications which may or are required to be 

given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly given if personally delivered or sent by United 
States mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, to the addresses set forth 
hereunder or to such other address as the other party hereto may designate in written notice transmitted in 
accordance with this provision. 
 
i. In the case of Grantor, to: 

 
Ohio Development Services Agency 
Office of Community Development 
77 South High Street, P.O. Box 1001 
Columbus, Ohio  43216-1001 

 Attn:  Deputy Chief 
 
ii. In the case of Grantee, to: 

 
Grantee Name: City of Piqua  - Development Department  

Address: 201 West Water St. 

City, State, Zip: Piqua, OH 45356 

Attention: Nikki Reese, Development Program Manager 

 



 

 6

f. Amendments or Modifications.   Either party may at any time during the term of this Agreement request 
amendments or modifications, as described in the applicable State of Ohio Consolidated Submission. Requests 
for amendment or modification of Agreement shall be in writing and shall specify the requested changes and the 
justification of such changes. The parties shall review the request for modification in terms of the regulations 
and goals relating to the Project(s). Should the parties consent to modification of the Agreement, then an 
amendment shall be drawn, approved, and executed in the same manner as the original agreement. 
 

g. Pronouns.   The use of any gender pronoun shall be deemed to include all the other genders, and the use of 
any singular noun or verb shall be deemed to include the plural, and vice versa, whenever the context so 
requires. 

 
h. Headings.   Section headings contained in Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not be 

deemed to be a part of Agreement. 
 

i. Assignment.   Neither Agreement nor any rights, duties, or obligations described herein shall be assigned, 
subcontracted or subgranted by Grantee without the prior express written consent of Grantor. 

 
j. Permissible Expenses.  If “travel expenses,” as defined in Ohio Administrative Code Section 126-1-02 (the 

“Expense Rule”), are a cost of the Project eligible for reimbursement with Grant Funds, Grantee shall be 
reimbursed accordingly. Grantee agrees that it shall not be reimbursed and Grantor shall not pay any items that 
are deemed to be “non-reimbursable travel expenses” under the Expense Rule, whether purchased by the 
Grantee or Grantor or their respective employees or agents. 

 
k. Binding Effect.   Each and all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall extend to and bind and inure 

to the benefit of Grantee, its successors and permitted assigns. 
 
l. Survival.   Any provision of this Agreement which, by its nature, is intended to survive the expiration or other 

termination of this Agreement, including, without limitation, any indemnification obligation, shall so survive and 
shall benefit the parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

 
m. Counterparts; PDF Accepted.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 

when so executed shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the 
same agreement. Copies of signatures sent by facsimile transmission or provided electronically in portable 
document format (“PDF”) shall be deemed to be originals for purposes of execution and proof of this Agreement 



 

 7

 
Signature:   Each of the parties has caused this Grant Agreement to be executed by its authorized representatives as of 

the dates set forth below their respective signatures effective as of the Effective Date: 
 
 
GRANTEE:  
 
City of Piqua 
 
 
Gary A. Huff, City of Manager 
City of Piqua 
 
 
By:________________________________ 
   
Printed Name:_Gary A. Huff  ___  
 
Title:_City Manager   ___ 
   
Date:______________________________ 
 

GRANTOR: 
 
State of Ohio 
Development Services Agency 
 
David Goodman, Director 
 
 
 
By:________________________________  
 
Printed Name:______________________  
 
Title:_____________________________  
 
Date:______________________________ 

 
     
 
 



 

RESOLUTION NO. R-80-15 

 

AN EMERGENCY RESOLUTION GRANTING A TEMPORARY 
EASEMENT TO NORTHROP GRUMMAN SYSTEMS CORPORATION 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua owns a certain portion of the real estate known as 
Linear Park that includes the bike path; and 

 WHEREAS, Northrop Grumman Systems Corporation is under an EPA mandate to 
install wells adjacent to its property for the purpose of monitoring the quality of the 
groundwater; and  

 WHEREAS, the wells are able to be located so as to not interfere or interrupt use 
of the bike path and continue to meet the requirements of the EPA mandate; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua is able to grant a temporary easement for the 
purposes of assisting Northrop Grumman Systems Corporation in monitoring 
groundwater, which is also a benefit to the City of Piqua.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 

SEC. 1: The City Manager is hereby authorized to grant a temporary 
easement to Northrop Grumman Systems Corporation for the purpose of installing, 
maintaining and removing two wells and to enter the land for groundwater sampling 
substantially in the form with the terms in the draft agreement as in attached Exhibit A and 
in accordance with the legal description as shown in the diagram for the area of the bike 
path in Linear Park between Sunset Avenue and R.M. Davis Parkway and upon execution 
shall duly record said easement with the Miami County Recorder.   

 SEC. 2: The temporary easement is necessary for the purposes of Northrop 
Grumman Systems Corporation complying with an EPA mandate for groundwater 
monitoring. 

 SEC. 3  This Resolution is declared an emergency for the immediate 
preservation of the public peace, health or safety in the City of Piqua as the Northrop 
Grumman Systems Corporation is under an EPA mandate for groundwater monitoring and 
is to install the wells in the beginning of May.   
 
 
        
 ___________________________ 
        LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



















 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-81-15 
 

AN EMERGENCY RESOLUTION ACQUIRING 
JCRANE INC. TO PROVIDE CRANE AND 
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES FOR THE POWER 
SYSTEM 

 
 WHEREAS, Emergency work is needed to restore the operation of the 
main power transformer at substation #3, 
 
 WHEREAS, the transformer at substation #3 is a critical component to 
the city’s electric system therefore based on Section 34.19 (B) of our City 
Charter “Bidding is not required when in unforeseen emergencies, delay 
would result in the interpretation of or detriment to the delivery of public 
services, as determined by the City Manager”; and 
  

WHEREAS, the power transformer needs to be transported to 
Louisville, OH to be inspected and repaired, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the 
City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: JCrane Inc. is hereby retained by the City of Piqua to 
provide crane and transportation services for the Power System. 
 
 SEC. 2 The Finance Director certifies funds are available and is 
hereby authorized to draw her warrant on the appropriate account of the city 
treasury according to contract terms, not to exceed $38,000. 
 

SEC. 3: It is found and determined that all formal actions of this 
Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 
adopted in an open meeting of this Commission, and that all deliberations of 
this Board and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action, 
were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal 
requirements; 
 
 SEC. 4: This Resolution is declared an emergency as the 
operation of the transformer at substation #3 is a critical component to the 
city’s electric system. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
          LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 7
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 

MEETING DATE 

 

 

May 5, 2015 

 
 

REPORT TITLE 
 
 

 
A RESOLUTION ACQUIRING JCRANE INC. TO PROVIDE 
CRANE AND TRANSPORTATION SERVICES FOR THE 
POWER SYSTEM 
 

 

SUBMITTED BY 
Name & Title:  Nick Berger, Asst. Power System Director 

Department: Power System 

 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

Consent 

 

Ordinance 

 

Resolution 

 

Regular 

 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS 
City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

Department Director; Ed Krieger Other:  Energy Board 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

On April 6, 2015. Power Services inspected and tested the Substation #3’s main 
15/20/25/28 MVA power transformer.  As a result, Substation #3 Transformer 
was found to have unacceptable Doble Excitation Current test results indicating 
that there is a partial or high resistance short circuit between winding turns; or 
physical damage to interlaminar insulation; or dislocation of core sections.  It 
was determined the refurbishment of the substation transformer is an emergency 
situation as Substation #3 is a critical component to the city’s electric system. 
 
The Power System determined OTC Services Inc. out of Louisville, OH will 
perform the field services, inspections, and refurbishment of the unit.  The 
Power System received three quotes to provide crane services and transportation 
to deliver the 106,000 lb transformer to OTC. jCrane Inc. was determined to be 
the lowest and best bid.  The breakdown of costs are below: 
 

1. Crane Services to load unit - $7,436 
2. Transporation from Piqua, OH to Lousiville, OH - $7,762 
3. Transporation from Louisville, OH to Piqua, OH  - $8,889 
4. Crane Services to unload unit - $7,436 

 
The Power System is requesting a 20% contingency for any unforeseen 
expenses which brings the total amount to $38,000. 



 

BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

Budgeted $:   

Expenditure $:  $38,000 

Source of Funds:  

Narrative:   

 

OPTIONS 

 

 

1. Approve Resolution No. R-81-15 acquiring jCrane Inc. to provide crane 
and transportation services for the power system. 

2. Do not approve the Resolution and provide staff with further direction 

 

PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 

Shipment of the damage transformer will be schedule for the beginning of May. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Approve Resolution No. R-81-15 acquiring jCrane Inc. to provide crane and 
transportation services for the power system. 

ATTACHMENTS  1. Transportation Costs Summary 

2. jCrane Proposal – Crane Services 

3. jCrane Proposal - Transportation 

 



Quotation

Lifting Made Easy REV 1 Page 1 of 1

Customer Job Site Date: 4/28/2015

Company: Name:
Contact: Address:
Address: Description:
Tel:
Email:

Conditions and Limitations
Price assumes we can use the West gate , accessed from Hartzell's parking lot.
Price includes lawn protection, between curb and fence.
All time spent waiting on transformer truck will be invoiced at $555.00/hr.
Required lifting devices included.
All prices assume weights and specs listed are accurate.
Work is to be performed during normal working hours Monday - Friday or additional cost will be added.
O/T will be charged after 8 hrs on weekdays and entire Saturday.
Cranes are operated by NCCCO operators.
No liquidated damages or consequential liability shall be transferred to Jcrane, Inc.
Jcrane, Inc. will not be responsible for damage to surfaces which must be crossed or used by equipment such
as asphalt, grass, curbs, sidewalks, underground utilities, tanks, etc.
No work will be scheduled on accounts that are past due.
Includes no work or equipment not specifically stated on this quote.

Quotation is valid for 30 days and is subject to availability of equipment.

Terms of payment:

Upon account approval, net due 30 days from date of invoice. Jcrane, Inc. shall invoice weekly or upon completion of job, whichever is sooner. 

Late payments are subject to 1.5%/month service charges. No work will be scheduled on accounts that are past due.

Acceptance: The pricing, specifications, conditions and terms
Thank you for this opportunity, are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.

Authorized Signature:

Matt Peters
(937) 418-7879
mpeters@jcrane.com Date of acceptance:

Phone: (800) 692-1240 Fax: (937) 473-5250

Amount
$7,436.00

City of Piqua Transformer Repair
Roger Wehrman Piqua, OH
Piqua, OH Provide a crane w/operator, 1 Rigger, 

and 1 signalman to load a transformer, 
weighing 106,000 lbs.

937-606-0038
rwehrman@piquaoh.org

www.jcrane.com

10315 W US 36, Covington, OH 45318 USA



Quotation

Lifting Made Easy REV 1 Page 1 of 1

Customer Job Site Date: 4/24/2015

Company: Name:
Contact: Address:
Address: Description:
Tel:
Email:

Conditions and Limitations
Price assumes we can use the West gate , accessed from Hartzell's parking lot.
Price assumes that all radiators and bushings will be removed, prior to arrival of JCI.
All prices assume weights and specs listed are accurate.
Work is to be performed during normal working hours Monday - Friday or additional cost will be added.
O/T will be charged after 8 hrs on weekdays and entire Saturday.
Cranes are operated by NCCCO operators.
No liquidated damages or consequential liability shall be transferred to Jcrane, Inc.
Jcrane, Inc. will not be responsible for damage to surfaces which must be crossed or used by equipment such
as asphalt, grass, curbs, sidewalks, underground utilities, tanks, etc.
No work will be scheduled on accounts that are past due.
Includes no work or equipment not specifically stated on this quote.

Quotation is valid for 30 days and is subject to availability of equipment.

Terms of payment:

Upon account approval, net due 30 days from date of invoice. Jcrane, Inc. shall invoice weekly or upon completion of job, whichever is sooner. 

Late payments are subject to 1.5%/month service charges. No work will be scheduled on accounts that are past due.

Acceptance: The pricing, specifications, conditions and terms
Thank you for this opportunity, are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.

Authorized Signature:

Matt Peters
(937) 418-7879
mpeters@jcrane.com Date of acceptance:

Phone: (800) 692-1240 Fax: (937) 473-5250

Amount
$8,889.00

This price is to deliver the transformer from Piqua, OH to Louisville, OH with the oil out of the transformer.

This price is to transport thr transformer from Louisville, OH to Piqua, OH with the oil in the transformer.

Estimated weight is 106,500 lbs.

Estimated weight is 92,000 lbs.

Amount
$7,762.00

City of Piqua Transformer Repair
Roger Wehrman Piqua, OH
Piqua, OH Provide Trucks, escorts, and all other 

equipment and labor to transport the 
Transformer to Louisville, OH.

937-606-0038
rwehrman@piquaoh.org

www.jcrane.com

10315 W US 36, Covington, OH 45318 USA



Project: Substation #3 Transformer Rebuild
Date: April 28, 2015

OTC PSC jCrane Inc Schumacher
Crane Services 65,000.00$      59,330.00$      14,872.00$            9,760.00$        

OTC PSC jCrane Inc Schumacher
TO Shipping (OH) 10,900.00$      9,529.00$        7,762.00$              No Bid

OTC jCrane Inc Schumacher
BACK Shipping w/ Oil 15,800.00$      8,889.00$        No Bid

Note 1: Schumacher didn't provide pricing to transport unit to Louisville, OH
Note 2: Crane Services are for both loading and unloading the transformer



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-82-15 
 

AN EMERGENCY RESOLUTION OBTAINING OTC 
SERVICES INC. TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL FIELD 
SERVICES, UNIT INSPECTION, AND 
REFURBISHMENT FOR THE MAIN POWER 
TRANSFORMER FOR SUBSTATION #3 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Emergency work is needed to restore the operation of the 
main power transformer at substation #3 
 
 WHEREAS, the transformer at substation #3 is a critical component to 
the city’s electric system therefore based on Section 34.19 (B) of our City 
Charter “Bidding is not required when in unforeseen emergencies, delay 
would result in the interpretation of or detriment to the delivery of public 
services, as determined by the City Manager”; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the 
City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: OTC Services Inc. is hereby retained by the City of Piqua 
to provide professional field services, unit inspection, and refurbishment of the 
power transformer for substation #3. 
 
 SEC. 2 The Finance Director certifies funds are available and is 
hereby authorized to draw her warrant on the appropriate account of the city 
treasury according to contract terms, not to exceed $350,000. 
 

SEC. 3: It is found and determined that all formal actions of this 
Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 
adopted in an open meeting of this Commission, and that all deliberations of 
this Board and of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action, 
were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal 
requirements; 
 
 SEC. 4: This resolution is declared an emergency as the 
operation of the transformer at substation #3 is a critical component to the 
city’s electric system. 
 
      ____________________________ 
          LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 8
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 

MEETING DATE 

 

 

May 5, 2015 

 
 

REPORT TITLE 
 
 

 
AN EMERGENCY RESOLUTION OBTAINING OTC SERVICES 
INC. TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL FIELD SERVICES, UNIT 
INSPECTION, AND REFURBISHMENT FOR THE MAIN 
POWER TRANSFORMER FOR SUBSTATION #3 
 

 

SUBMITTED BY 
Name & Title:  Nick Berger, Asst. Power System Director 

Department: Power System 

 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

Consent 

 

Ordinance 

 

Resolution 

 

Regular 

 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS 
City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

Department Director; Ed Krieger Other:  Energy Board 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

 
On April 6, 2015. Power Services inspected and tested Substation #3’s main 
15/20/25/28 MVA power transformer to evaluate the overall condition of the 
transformer during the municipal utility’s annual preventative maintenance 
program. In addition, tests were performed to verify the condition of the 
transformer core and coil structure.  
 
As a result, Substation #3 Transformer was found to have unacceptable Doble 
Excitation Current test results indicating that there is a partial or high resistance 
short circuit between winding turns; or physical damage to interlaminar 
insulation; or dislocation of core sections. Any loosening of the core clamping 
system will introduce gaps in the iron circuit and increase the magnetizing 
component of the excitation current. 
 
These results were discussed with Doble engineering and they agreed with 
Power Services’ results. Based on this test data and the fact that the transformer 
temperature has been significantly elevated, the transformer should be sent to a 
repair shop and de-tanked in order to determine what is causing the transformer 
issues.  
 



It was determined the refurbishment of the substation transformer is an 
emergency situation based on section 34.19 (B) of our City Charter which 
states: “Bidding is not required when in unforeseen emergencies, delay would 
result in the interpretation of or detriment to the delivery of public services, as 
determined by the City Manager.”  When substation #3’s transformer is out of 
service, substation #1 and #4 has to pick up the extra load.  This increases the 
circuit’s line exposure which in turns decreases the overall reliability.  
Substation #3 is a critical component to the city’s electric system. 
 
The Power System requested quotes from Jordan Transformer and OTC 
Services Inc. to perform the field services, inspection, refurbishment, and 
rewind of the damaged transformer.  It was determined OTC Services Inc.’s 
provided the best proposal for these services.  The breakdown in OTC’s costs 
are below: 
 

1. The field services which include the disassembly, assembly, and electric 
testing are $39,000.   

2. The unit inspection is $15,000.  
3. The refurbishment and rewind services could be up to $267,522 

 
After the unit is inspected, OTC will provide the Power System a complete 
recommended refurbish plan.  At that time, the Power System will determine 
between refurbishing the damaged transformer and purchasing a new 
transformer.  If refurbishing the transformer is determined to be the best option, 
the power system would like approval to proceed with refurbishing the unit.   

 

BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

Budgeted $:   

Expenditure $:  $350,000 

Source of Funds:  

Narrative:   

 

OPTIONS 

 

 

1. Approve Resolution No. R-82-15 obtaining OTC services inc. to provide 
professional field services, unit inspection, and refurbishment for the main 
power transformer for substation #3. 

2. Do not approve the Resolution and provide staff with further direction 

 

PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

The lead time for OTC’s refurbishment and rewind services is 25-27 weeks 
from receipt of the transformer. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 

Approve Resolution No. R-82-15 obtaining OTC services inc. to provide 
professional field services, unit inspection, and refurbishment for the main 
power transformer for substation #3. 

ATTACHMENTS  1. Refurbish Costs Summary 

2. OTC Services Inc. proposal 

 



OTC Services Inc.  Christopher Matney 
1776 Constitution Ave.  Utility Sales Manager 
P.O. Box 44641  cmatney@otcservices.com 
Louisville, OH 44641  330.268.0393 (Cell) 
330.871.2444 (P)  www.otcservices.com 
33.871.2506 (F)  Date Prepared: 4/13/15 
 
CUSTOMER: CITY OF PIQUA 
CUSTOMER REFERENCE NUMBER: HEVI-DUTY 
OTC SERVICES QUOTE NUMBER: 15053 
TECHNICAL DESCRIPTION: 
 OEM: HEVI-DUTY 
 Serial Number: GM 436478 
Existing Ratings: 
 15/28 MVA     Class OA/FA/FA @ 55/65˚C Rise 
 3 Phase     60 Hertz 
 HV:  69,000Y/39,837  350 KV BIL Taps: -/-2@2.5% 
 XV:  13,800Y   110 KV BIL 
 TV: 7,970D   95 kV BIL   

6.8%IZ @ 15 MVA   
   
I. FIELD SERVICES 
 
Disassembly: 

 Drain the Oil and dispose of 
 Removal of radiators 
 Remove bushings 
 Prepare loose items for shipment to OTC 
 Price to perform Field Service Disassembly- $17,800.00 

Assembly: 
 Inspect unit  
 Install all loose parts 
 Pressurize unit for dew point and leak check 
 Install sound panels  
 Pull vacuum 12 hrs and fill unit to proper level* 
 Electrical Test unit 
 Price to perform install- $29,500.00 
 *If transformer ships with oil from the factor the price will be $21,200 

OTC will provide: 
o Crane for disassembly 
o Two non-union labors  
o Tool trailer 
o Any materials required for assembly that are additional shall be charged at cost plus 15% 

 
II. TRANSPORTATION & RIGGING 

 $10,900 – Inbound freight from Piqua, OH to OTC Services in Louisville, OH.  Price includes truck to 
transport transformer to OTC Services Inc. with all accessory items and oil removed. Free and clear 
access must be provided for loading purpose, any delays may result in additional charges. 

 $10,900 – Outbound freight from OTC Services in Louisville to Piqua, OH. Price includes truck to 
transport transformer with all accessory items and oil removed. Accessory truck with radiators, 
bushings, etc… are included. Free and clear access must be provided for unloading purpose, any 
delays may result in additional charges. Price adder to ship the transformer with oil is listed as an 
option below. 

 $65,000 - Price round roundtrip crane/rigging services. Free and clear access must be provided for 
unloading purpose, any delays may result in additional charges. 



III. REFURBISHMENT AND REWIND SERVICES 
1. $267,522 - Complete Redesign & Rewind of core and coil assembly to existing nameplate ratings 

according to the latest ANSI/IEEE standards.  Rewind will include new Dennison wrapped copper 
windings and replacement of all end insulation, phase barriers, and winding cylinders. Existing cabling 
and structure shall be inspected for reuse. The total transformer shall be designed and constructed to 
withstand short circuit forces per the latest ANSI/IEEE standards.  See “Rewind Technical Work-scope 
Section” for further details regarding this work.   
Lead Time: 25-27 Weeks from receipt of the transformer.* 
 

2. $20,000 - Expedite the remanufacture process. This price is in addition to the option 1 above and will 
place the transformer on our expedited schedule. In doing this we will perform an incoming inspection 
and any items we find to be deficient will be replace at a COST + 20%, NOT TO EXCEED $30,000. This 
means the incoming inspection will be streamlined and quicken the upfront process. We will place this 
transformer in our next manufacturing spot, instead of placing it in queue from when received and 
release from incoming. 
Lead Time: 20 Weeks from receipt of the transformer 
 

3. $350,460 - This price is for a completely new transformer with a new tank, radiators and M3 Core. The 
transformer will match the existing nameplate ratings and will include all analog temperature gages with 
contacts, include new oil and control wiring/box. If this option is taken, the inbound services fees will not 
apply. Loss evaluation will be: NL –12 kW LL – 45.5 kW Total: 57.5 kW 
Lead Time: 22 Weeks from approval of outline and nameplate drawing. 

    
IV. REMANUFACTURE OPTIONAL PRICE ADDERS 

A. $12,000 – Replace all HV and LV bushings. 
B. $4,000 – Replace all existing gages in kind. 
C. $10,000 – Replace all internal leads and cables. 
D. $4,900 – Additional price to the outbound freight to ship the transformer will oil. This means onsite 

filling will not be needed. 
 
V. CLARIFICATIONS AND EXCEPTIONS 
1. Any customer supplied equipment shall be inspected and tested for quality assurance by OTC Services. 
2. Lead-time may be subject to change based on plant loading at time of transformer’s arrival and long lead 

time components found during the incoming inspection.  
3. An incoming inspection report shall be completed and submitted within three to five weeks after receipt 

of the transformer.  Any additional scope of work resulting from this inspection will require a revised 
purchase order from the customer. 

4. Digital pictures of significant findings, the completed core and coil assembly, and the completed 
transformed will be submitted. 

5. A new Stainless Steel nameplate will be supplied and shipped with the transformer.  
6. New Outline drawings and Wiring Schematics will be modified as necessary based on changes made 

during the repair process. 
 
VI. PCB POLICY AND REQUIREMENTS 
OTC Services is a NON-PCB facility and will not accept materials classified as PCB or PCB contaminated 
according to 40CFR part 761.  Therefore, we require a recent valid PCB test for any oil filled compartment on 
which work is to be performed. If required, OTC will provide free testing upon the successful award of this 
bid.  Upon receipt of the transformer at our facility, OTC will perform confirmatory testing.  In the event PCB 
or PCB contaminated materials are discovered by OTC either at receipt or during the production process, OTC 
will quarantine the items and immediately notify the owner so that arrangements can be made for their 
removal. 

 
 
 

 



 
VII. PRICING AND WARRANTY TERMS 
Freight: FOB Origin  
Price Validity: 60 days for purchase; 6 months for shipment 
Payment: 40% upon order, 40% with material order, 20% upon shipment, Net 30 days 
No Sales or use taxes have been calculated on any of the pricing provided.  The Customer will be responsible 
for any taxes associated with the purchase of this service contract or may supply a tax exempt certificate for 
our records. 
Warranty: 36 months energized – 42 months from time of shipment on parts and labor supplied by OTC 
Services. 
The shipment date will be determined at the time of the transformer teardown inspection. 
OTC Services Terms of Sale Apply 
 
VIII. PROCESSING & CORE/COIL ASSEMBLY 
1. The completed core and coil assembly will be thoroughly dried through the use of heat and vacuum until 

an insulation power factor of less than 0.5% is achieved. 
2. The core will be cleaned and re-insulated prior to landing of coils. Minor damage to the core shall be 

repaired; however any major damage will be noted on the incoming inspection report. 
3. All Core Grounds will be brought out by Auburn F-310H spark-plug and clearly marked. 
4. The fully assembled remanufactured transformer shall be pressure tested and monitored for 24 hours.   
5. Prior to re-tanking the core and coil assembly, the tank will be thoroughly flushed, cleaned and dried. 
 
IX. REWIND TECHNICAL WORK-SCOPE 
1. The De-energized Tap Changer (D.E.T.C.) will be evaluated mechanically and electrically for reuse.  
2. All internal PT’s and CT’s will be flushed, cleaned, dried, tested, and rewrapped if reusable. No splices will 

be made in the CT leads. 
3. All cable leads and associated structure will be evaluated for cracks and/or contamination for reuse. 
4. All valves and accessories will be inspected and checked for proper operation. 
5. HV bushings shall be evaluated for reuse. The incoming findings shall be noted on the incoming 

inspection report with available options. 
6. LV bushings shall be evaluated for reuse. The incoming findings shall be noted on the incoming inspection 

report with available options. 
7. New nitrile gaskets will be installed on all gasketed joints and/or accessories.  All valves will be cleaned 

and inspected. 
8. Coolers and pumps shall be inspected, pressure tested, and flushed to remove any debris. 
9. The tank will be properly prepared, primed and painted with alkyd enamel ANSI 70 light gray paint to 

provide a total dry coat of 5-7 mil thickness. One gallon of touch up paint shall be supplied. 
10. All gauges will be inspected and recommendations will be made regarding reuse or replacement in the 

incoming inspection report. Incoming inspection report to be submitted within four weeks of receipt of 
transformer and valid PO. 

11. A Pelsue fall protection flange, no. L869.FB-SW1, will be installed on lid in a location determined by 
engineering. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



X. TESTING 
1. All tests performed on the transformer shall be in accordance with the latest revision of ANSI/IEEE 

specifications (ANSI C57.12.00, ANSI C57.12.90). 
2. Oil Testing:  Full oil quality testing along with a baseline DGA are performed prior to any testing.  

Confirmatory DGA testing is also performed after dielectrics. 
3. Ratio:  Ratio tests are made between windings several times during reassembly and at final testing.  Final 

testing will be made at all HV positions to neutral and from HV nominal to all LV tap positions. 
4. Polarity and Phase Rotation:  Made at the rated voltage position. 
5. Insulation Resistance:  Insulation resistance, including core ground testing, is performed on all core and 

coil assemblies throughout the manufacturing process as well as final test.    
6. Insulation Power Factor and Single Phase Excitation:  Tests are made with a Doble test set and are 

performed before and after dielectrics.  Power Factor will not exceed 0.5% corrected to 20⁰C. 
7. Winding Resistance:  Resistance tests are performed on all HV and LV tap positions. 
8. No Load Tests:  Core loss and excitation current are tested at a rated frequency at 100% and 110% rated 

voltage before and after dielectrics.   
9. Impedance and Load Loss:  Tested at full rated current on rated connection and tap extremes between all 

windings. 
10. Induced Potential:  The transformer will undergo a Class II induced tests to include one hour at 150% 

while monitoring PD levels. 
11. Impulse Testing:  Full ANSI impulse including chop waves will be performed on each phase of the HV and 

LV windings according to the nameplate BIL.  The neutral will also be tested with one reduced and two 
full wave shapes.   

12. Applied Potential:  Test is made on all windings at full ANSI recommended level, 60HZ for one minute. 
13. Dew Point:  Prior to shipment, the dew point, temperature, and pressure of the dry air will be measured. 
14. Bushing Tests:  Bushings are individually tested with a Doble test set prior to final assembly.  After the 

bushings are mounted on the transformer, they will receive full dielectric tests.   
15. A certified test report will be supplied which includes results of all the tests performed and winding 

connections as shipped.   
 



Project: Substation #3 Transformer Rebuild
Date: April 28, 2015

OTC PSC jCrane Inc Schumacher
Crane Services 65,000.00$         59,330.00$       14,872.00$            9,760.00$         

Jordan PSC jCrane Schumacher
TO Shipping (MN) 17,125.00$         20,941.00$       24,425.00$            No Bid

OTC PSC jCrane Schumacher
TO Shipping (OH) 10,900.00$         9,529.00$         7,762.00$              No Bid

Jordan OTC Power Services
Field Services (disassemble & 

assemble) 80,100.00$         39,000.00$       48,500.00$            

Jordan - MN jCrane - MN Schumacher
BACK Shipping w/ Oil 33,218.00$         27,467.00$       No Bid

OTC - OH jCrane - OH Schumacher
BACK Shipping w/ Oil 15,800.00$         8,889.00$         No Bid

Jordan OTC
Inspection 7,500.00$           15,000.00$       

OTC  54,000.00$         
jCrane 31,523.00$         

OTC - Refurbish TBD
OTC Total Price 85,523.00$         

Power Services 48,500.00$         
Jordan Transformer  57,843.00$         
Jordan - Refurbish TBD

jCrane 14,872.00$         

Jordan Transformer Total Price 121,215.00$      

Option 1

Option 2



RESOLUTION NO. R-83-15 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A LOAN AGREEMENT 
WITH HARVEST PANTRY, LLC, IN THE AMOUNT OF $30,000 

WHEREAS, on August 5, 2009, the City of Piqua was a recipient of a $90,000 
grant from the United States Department of Agriculture’s Rural Business Enterprise 
Grant to establish a revolving loan fund for the purposes of increasing economic 
opportunities for industrial and commercial concerns within the City of Piqua through 
the development of small and emerging private business enterprises; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has received an application for a loan from 
the revolving loan fund from Harvest Pantry, LLC; and  

WHEREAS, the application has been deemed to be complete and is 
recommended for approval by the City Commission; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that 

 SEC. 1: The Finance Director certifies funds are available and is hereby 
authorized to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the city 
treasury in payment according to the terms of the loan, an amount not exceeding a total of 
$30,000; 

 SEC. 2: The City shall submit and execute all necessary documentation 
with Harvest Pantry, LLC and the United States Department of Agriculture to facilitate the 
execution of the loan agreement; 

 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   _______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 

 



 
 

(Shou

 

 
AG

 
 

(Incl

 

(Inclu

ME

RE
uld match reso

SU

GENDA CLA

APPROVA

BA
ludes descriptio

a

BUD
FINAN

udes project co

EETING DAT

EPORT TITL
olution/ordinanc

title

UBMITTED B

ASSIFICATIO

ALS/REVIEW

ACKGROUN
on, background
and justification

DGETING AN
CIAL IMPAC
osts and fundin

sources

 

 
E 

May 5, 2

E 
ce 
e) 

 

A RESO
AGREE
$30,000

Y 
Name &
Departm

N 
 

Conse

S 
City M
Asst. 

  Departm
 

D 
d, 
n) 

 

In 2009
Departm
Develop
Departm
activities
enterpris
 
The pro
company
bulk foo
 
The bus
program
 
After co
determin
over a t
secured b
 
This loa
revolvin
 

D 
T 

ng 
s) 

Est. Bud
Est. Exp
$:  
Source o
Narrativ

 

Com
Staf
 
 
 
 

2015 

OLUTION 
EMENT WIT

 

& Title:  Justi
ment:  Devel

ent 

Manager 
City Manag
ment Directo
, the City o

ment of Agri
pment Revolv
ment of Agric

s resulting i
ses. 

ogram receiv
y to be locat

od store.   

siness has i
m for acquisit

onducting a r
ned by City 
term of six
by a second 

an is expecte
ng loan fund.

dgeted $:  $
penditure $

of Funds: F
ve:   

 

mmissi
ff Repo

 AUTHOR
TH HARVE

in A. Somm
opment 
 

Ordinanc

ger/Developm
or;  
of Piqua rec
iculture, wh
ving Loan F
culture allow
n the develo

ved an appl
ted in Down

indicated th
tion and reno

review of H
Staff that a
years at a 
position on 

ed to gener
   

$30,000.00 
$30,000.00 

Fund 142-87
 
 

ion Ag
ort 

RIZING TH
EST PANT

mer, Assista

ce 
 

ment 

ceived a $90
hich provide
Fund.  The fu
wed for a gr
opment of s

lication from
ntown Piqua

hat it needs 
ovation of re

Harvest Pantr
a loan of $3
3% annual 
the real esta

ate $2818.3

78-7560 – A

genda  

HE EXECU
TRY, LLC, I

ant City Man

  Resolution

Asst. City M
Law Directo
Other:  
0,000 grant 
ed initial fu
unding provi
reat deal of f
small and em

m Harvest P
a.  The comp

funds thro
eal estate. 

ry’s applicat
30,000 be of

percentage 
ate.   

5 in interes

Agriculture R

Item

          

UTION OF
IN THE AM

nager/ED D

n 
 

Re

Manager/Fin
or 

from the U
unding for a
ided by the U
flexibility on
merging priv

Pantry, LLC
pany will op

ough the rev

tion package
ffered to Ha
rate.  The 

st which wil

Revolving Lo

m #9

 

F A LOAN
MOUNT OF

Director 

gular 

nance 

United State
an Economic
United State
n the eligible
vate busines

C, a start-up
perate a retai

volving loan

e, it has been
arvest Pantry
loan will be

ll add to the

oan Fund 

N 
F 

s 
c 
s 
e 
s 

p 
il 

n 

n 
y 
e 

e 



 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Adopt the Resolution and authorize the Finance Director to expense 
the funds. 

2. Deny the Resolution and reject the loan.  
3.  

4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

Once the loan agreement is signed, the funds would be disbursed at the 
earliest period allowed by law.   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Staff recommends that the City Commission adopt the resolution which 
would allow the Finance Director to disburse funds. 

ATTACHMENTS   Revolving Loan Fund Application 

 








	agenda
	2015 - 042115 City Commission Minutes
	ord05_15_2
	ord05_15_2
	ord05_15_2b

	ord06_15_2b
	res78_15
	res78_15
	res78_15b
	res78_15c
	res78_15d
	res78_15e

	res79_15
	res79_15
	res79_15b
	res79_15c

	res80_15
	res80_15
	res80_15b

	res81_15
	res81_15
	res81_15b
	res81_15c
	res81_15d
	res81_15e

	res82_15
	res82_15
	res82_15b
	res82_15c
	res82_15d

	res83_15
	res83_15
	res83_15b
	res83_15c


